# Village of Gilberts

Village Hall 87 Galligan Road, Gilberts, IL 60136 Ph. 847-428-2861 Fax: 847-428-2955 www.villageofgilberts.com

## Village Administrator Memorandum 09-15

TO: President Rick Zirk Board of Trustees

**FROM:** Ray Keller, Village Administrator

**DATE:** January 30, 2015

**RE:** Village Board Meeting – February 3, 2015

The following summary discusses the agenda items for the Village Board meeting scheduled for February 3, 2015:

## 1. CALL TO ORDER

## 2. ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH QUORUM

## **3. PUBLIC COMMENT**

## 4. CONSENT AGENDA

Any item may be removed from the consent agenda by request.

## A. Motion to approve Minutes from the January 20, 2015 Village Board Meeting

Please review the enclosed minutes from the January 20 Village Board meeting. Please contact Village Clerk Debra Meadows prior to the meeting with any corrections or questions. Staff recommend approval.

## B. Motion to approve Bills & Salaries dated February 3, 2015

Please refer to the enclosed spreadsheet, which lists the bills to be approved. Staff recommend approval. If you need additional information about any of these bills, please contact me or Finance Director Marlene Blocker prior to the meeting.

## 5. ITEMS FOR APPROVAL

A. Motion to approve Ordinance 04-2015, an Ordinance amending the Village of Gilberts Code Chapter 3-8 "Auctions and Auctioneers" and Chapter 2-4 "Fee Schedule"

At the January 20 Board meeting, Mr. Dave Gerber of The X Factor Auctions & Appraisals requested that the Village reduce or waive the \$500.00 per auction license fee. Mr. Gerber provided a survey of what neighboring community's charge for auctions and business license fees, a copy of which is provided for the Board's review.

Public Works Facility Finance & Building Departments 73 Industrial Drive, Gilberts, IL 60136 Ph. 847-428-4167 Fax: 847-551-3382

Police Department 86 Railroad St., Gilberts, IL 60136 Ph. 847-428-2954 Fax 847-428-4232 Staff recommend approval of the provided ordinance to reduce the fee to \$200.00, make it an annual license for an unlimited number of auction events in a calendar year and require the auctioneer to notify the Village ten days prior to any auctions. Staff found that the fee had been \$200.00 per event for many years, but was updated to \$500.00 when the Village Code was rewritten and adopted in early 2014. Staff recall only two auction events over the past several years, neither of which required additional police or other Village support. Based on this information and the information provided by Mr. Gerber, Staff concluded that restoring the \$200.00 fee and making it an annual license were reasonable accommodations. Staff retained the tenday notification requirement to ensure that the Police Department is made aware of auction events that may generate traffic, require security precautions or involve other accommodations.

Please contact me or Village Clerk Debra Meadows with any questions or requests for supplemental information that may be needed at the meeting.

## 6. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

## A. Intra Soccer Agreement

As requested at the January 20 Board meeting, Staff will provide additional information about the Village's response to the "fight in progress" call for police service at the Intra Soccer facility on December 7, 2014. Chief of Police Lou Rossi will be at the meeting to answer questions about what constitutes an "alcohol related event," as referenced in the reimbursement agreement between the Village and Intra Soccer LLC. Staff will request the Board's direction on whether to uphold the reimbursement request for the December 7 event and/or narrow the definition of what constitutes an "alcohol related" incident for future enforcement.

Please contact me or Police Chief Lou Rossi with any questions or requests for supplemental information that may be needed at the meeting.

## **B.** Fiber Optics Project

At the meeting, Staff will provide an update on the fiber optics project and the preliminary outline of public-private partnership with iFiber LLC. Please contact me or Assistant Administrator Bill Beith with any specific questions or requests for supplemental information that may be needed at the meeting.

## 7. STAFF REPORTS

Staff will provide any updates at the meeting.

## 8. BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORTS

## 9. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

## **10. EXECUTIVE SESSION**

Please contact me with any questions about other current closed session topics.

## **11. ADJOURNMENT**

## Village Board of Trustees

Meeting Agenda Village of Gilberts 87 GALLIGAN ROAD, GILBERTS, ILLINOIS 60136 February 3, 2015 7:00 P.M. A G E N D A

#### **ORDER OF BUSINESS**

- 1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- 2. ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH QUORUM
- 3. PUBLIC COMMENT

#### 4. CONSENT AGENDA

- A. A Motion to approve Minutes from the January 20, 2015 Village Board Meeting
- B. A Motion to approve Bills & Salaries dated February 3, 2015

#### 5. ITEMS FOR APPROVAL

A. A Motion to approve Ordinance 04-2015, an Ordinance amending the Village of Gilberts Code Chapter 3-8 "Auctions and Auctioneers" and Chapter 2-4 "Fee Schedule"

#### 6. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

- A. Intra Soccer agreement
- B. Fiber Optics Project

#### 7. STAFF REPORTS

8. BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORTS

#### 9. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

#### **10. EXECUTIVE SESSION**

A portion of the meeting will be closed to the Public, effective immediately as Permitted by 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) to discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the Village, and as permitted by 5 ILCS 102/2 (c) (11) to discuss litigation against, affecting, or on behalf of the Village which has been filed and is pending in a court or administrative tribunal of which is imminent and as permitted by 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (21) to review and approve closed session minutes and as permitted by 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) 2 Collective negotiating matters.

#### **11. ADJOURNMENT**

#### Audience Participation

Anyone indicating a desire to speak during Public Comments portion of the Village Board Meeting will be acknowledged by the Village President. All remarks are to be addressed to the Village President and Board of Trustees as a whole, not to any specific person(s). Interrogation of the Village Staff, Village President, Village Board or any other negative comments will not be allowed at this time. Personal invectives against Village Staff or Elected Officials are not permitted.

To ensure that everyone who wishes to speak has the opportunity to do so, please limit your comments to five minutes. Additional time may be granted at the discretion of the Village President.

If you have written comments, please provide a copy to the Village President. If there are a number of individuals present to speak on the same topic, please designate a spokesperson that can summarize the issue.

During Public Comments, the Village President, Trustees and Staff will listen to comments and will not engage in discussion. The Village President or Trustees may ask questions to better understand your concern, suggestion or request. Please direct any personnel concerns to the Village Administrator before or after the meeting.

"The Village of Gilberts complies with the Americans Disabilities Act (ADA). For accessibility Assistance, please contact the Village Clerk at the Village Hall, telephone number is 847-428-2861". Assistive services will be provided upon request.

## NOT APPROVED MINUTES

Village of Gilberts 87 Galligan Road Gilberts, IL. 60136 Village Board Meeting Minutes January 20, 2015

#### Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

Trustee Zambetti called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. He proceeded to lead those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

#### **Roll Call/ Establish Quorum**

Village Clerk Meadows called the roll. Roll call: Members present: Trustees Corbett, Mierisch, Zambetti, Farrell and Hacker. 2-absent: Trustee LeClercq and President Zirk. The Board Members acknowledged President Zirk's absence. <u>A motion was made by Trustee Corbett and seconded by Trustee Hacker to</u> <u>appoint Trustee Zambetti to serve as President Pro Tem.</u> Roll call: Vote: 5-ayes: Trustees Corbett, Mierisch, Zambetti, Farrell and Hacker. 0-nays, 0-abstained. Motion carried.

#### **Public Comment**

President Pro Tem Zambetti inquired if anyone in attendance wished to address the Board Members at this time. Intra Soccer Club owner Mr. Schcolnik approached the podium. Mr. Schcolnik discussed an agreement between himself and the Village which allowed him to ascertain a liquor license from Kane County. He noted that he had agreed that if there were any alcohol related incidents at the Intra Soccer Club that required Gilberts Police Department services he would pay a \$750.00 fine.

Mr. Schoolnik discussed the changes and improvements he had made to the facility over the last 18 months of ownership. He commented on the fact that he along with his staff has worked very hard in changing the culture and reputation of the soccer club.

Mr. Schcolnik commented on three recent incidents that required response from the Gilberts Police Department. He reported that the first incident was two 16 year old boys fighting over a girl. The seconded was two very competitive teams disagreement of a call made by a referee. Both of these incidents did not involve alcohol consumption. However, the third most recent incident was prompted by a 911 phone call in which the female caller reported a disturbance in the Intra Soccer Club's parking lot involving five to six intoxicated individuals. Gilberts Police Department along with Kane County Sheriff's department responded to the scene.

Mr. Schcolnik contended that when the officers arrived the alleged intoxicated individuals had left.

Mr. Schcolnik reported that this incident in reality was between two coworkers who had a work related disagreement and neither was intoxicated. Mr. Schcolnik provided the Board Members with two sworn affidavits, one from the facilities operations manager and the other from one of the coworkers involved in the verbal disagreement that took place the night in question.

Mr. Schoolnik questioned the criteria used by the police officers to determine that this incident was alcohol related. He questioned if the determination was solely based on the 911 callers description of the event.

Administrator Keller noted that the officers in the field are experienced in determining if an incident, accident or other types of disturbances are alcohol related. The officers write their reports based on their knowledge and experience. Chief Rossi then reviews the officers' reports and determines if the incident warrants the alcohol related fines.

Mr. Schcolnik went on to discuss the fact that he currently has 13 video surveillance cameras and will be installing 7 additional cameras. Trustee Mierisch inquired if the cameras were located both inside and outside the facility. Mr. Schcolnik replied yes, the surveillance cameras are located both inside the facility and also monitor the parking lot. Trustee Mierisch inquired if Mr. Schcolnik has security personnel on staff. Mr. Schcolnik replied yes, as warranted by the type of sporting event. He noted for the Little Kickers and younger children's league there is no need for security. However, for the competitive adult leagues security officers are on the premises.

Trustee Hacker noted that his grandsons participate in soccer leagues at the Intra Soccer Club. One evening he noticed several discarded beer cans in the facility's parking lot. However, he only noticed this on one occasion. Mr. Schcolnik reported he does have staff and security patrol the grounds and they do the best they can to ensure alcohol is not consumed in the parking lot.

Mr. Schcolnik once again asked for details on the criteria used by the Police Department to determine if an incident is alcohol related. A lengthy discussion ensued with respect to the police department's procedures. Administrator Keller strongly defended the Police Department's procedures and their determination if an incident is alcohol related. The Board Members concurred with Administrator Keller's evaluation of the Police Departments procedures. The Board Members however, would like to personally discuss this matter with Chief of Police Rossi.

Resident Bill Shank approached the Board Members. He expressed concern with a recent water bill in which his water usage spiked to 7,300 gallons.

He noted that last year he had experienced a similar problem and the Village waived the bill and replaced his meter. Finance Director Blocker noted that the Village did have the old meter tested by Neptune and they did not find that the old meter was malfunctioning.

Mr. Shank reported his most recent bill their water usage was averaging 4,000 gallons a day over a 16 day period. Finance Director Blocker reported that Mr. Shank had called after he received the bill. Staff went to Mr. Shank's residence to investigate if there was a leak in the home. Staff noted moisture under the furnace in the general area of the humidifier. However, Staff was unable to definitely determine if the humidifier was the cause of the spike in water usage.

Trustee Farrell inquired on the dates that they had experienced the spike in usage. Finance Director Blocker reported the timeframe was December 9<sup>th</sup> -26<sup>th</sup>.

Trustee Mierisch questioned if any other residents were experiencing a spike in usage. Finance Director Blocker replied no.

Administrator Keller commented on the fact that the spike in water usage was just over a 16 day period and has returned to normal. In addition, the homeowner is responsible for any water usage that occurs inside the home.

Trustee Zambetti questioned the moisture found by the humidifier. Mr. Shank reported that they recently had a new furnace installed and the humidifier had been disabled. Trustee Zambetti noted that mechanical problems with air conditioners, furnaces and other appliances can generate a great amount of water loss without the homeowner's knowledge.

Trustee Mierisch inquired if the home had previous owners. Mr. Shank replied yes. Trustee Mierisch asked Finance Director Blocker if the previous homeowners had any concerns with higher than normal water bills. Finance Director Blocker replied no.

A lengthy discussion ensued speculating on what could have caused this isolated incident. Administrator Keller asked the Board Members for direction. The Village does have a policy in place to waive the utility fee for a one time catastrophic event. However, Mr. Shank has already received the catastrophic waiver.

Trustee Zambetti requested Staff provide the Board Members with more information with respect to this request. Trustee Zambetti recalled a similar incident when a resident's humidifier broke and they experienced a spike in water usage and the Board Members waived the utility bill amount.

He requested staff provide the Board Member with that account information so they can compare the water loss amounts of that event with Mr. Shank's event. In addition, the Board Members requested Staff provide them with statics on the amount of which water could be loss with and 1/8" pipe and a ¼" pipe if there was a leak. Once the additional information is obtained the Board Members will provide Staff and Mr. Shank with a decision. The Board Members informed Mr. Shank at this time he does not have to pay the entire amount due. Mr. Shank will pay his typical water bill amount until the Board Members have gathered enough information to reach a decision.

David Gerber local business owner, of the X Factor Auctions and Appraisals addressed the Board Members. Mr. Gerber stated that his company is located at 211 E. Higgins, and in the past he has held on-line auctions, simulcast auctions, and off-site auctions. Mr. Gerber commented on the fact that he now would like to conduct auctions at his place of business. However, the Village Code requires an auction license for each event and the fee is \$500.00. Mr. Gerber asked if the Board Members would consider waiving the fee. Administrator Keller reported that he had discussed this matter with Attorney Tappendorf and she informed him that the Village does have the authority to waive the fee or create an annual license or lower the current fee.

Trustee Mierisch asked what type of auctions Mr. Gerber was interested in conducting on his property. Mr. Gerber replied the auctions vary in the type of merchandise, some are estate auctions, others are commercial equipment.

Trustee Mierisch asked Mr. Gerber if he could provide the Board Members with more information about the on-site auctions. She would like to know the general type of items that would be auctioned, the estimated number of people that would be attending the auction, the amount of items that would be auctioned, the estimated value of the auction items, how many auctions Mr. Gerber plans on conducting prior to making a decision.

Trustee Hacker inquired if Mr. Gerber anticipated conducting an estate auction on-site. Mr. Gerber replied as a rule it costs more money to relocate the estate's items. Trustee Hacker asked how many people Mr. Gerber anticipates attending the on-site auctions. Mr. Gerber estimated 15-20 attendees and no more than 50. Trustee Hacker agreed with Trustee Mierisch's recommendation of ascertaining more information with respect to the on-site auctions.

Trustee Farrell commented on Attorney Tappendorf's legal opinion on the Board Members authority to waive, reduce or implement an annual license. Administrator Keller noted that the State of Illinois licenses auctioneers, and Mr. Gerber holds a State License.

Trustee Zambetti questioned where Mr. Gerber's business was located. Mr. Gerber reported that he has two units adjacent to Striker Auto. Mr. Gerber noted that he plans on holding an on-site auction on January 31<sup>st</sup>. Administrator Keller reported that the next Board Meeting will be held on February 3 which is after Mr. Gerber's upcoming auction. Administrator Keller suggested Mr. Gerber pay the current auction license fee and if the Board Members decided to amend or waive the fee Mr. Gerber may receive a credit on his payment for the January 31<sup>st</sup> auction license. This matter will be discussed after Mr. Gerber provides the Board Members with the additional information requested by the Board Members.

## **Consent Agenda**

- A. A Motion to approve Minutes from the January 6, 2015 Village Board Meeting
- B. A Motion to approve Minutes from the January 13, 2015 Committee of the Whole Meeting
- C. A Motion to approve December 2014 Treasurer's Report
- D. A Motion to approve Bills & Salaries dated January 20, 2015 as follows: General Fund \$64,576.00, Performance Bonds and Escrows \$12,729.23, Water Fund \$11,234.41, Payroll \$57,731.13
- E. A Motion to approve Conservancy Pod 4 entry signage

President Pro Tem Zambetti inquired if there were any items the Board Members would like to remove from the agenda. The Board Members provided no comments on the removal of any of the consent agenda items. Trustee Corbett noted that the Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes for the January 13<sup>th</sup> meeting under consideration are the amended minutes Village Clerk Meadows had provided via email.

There being no further comments on the consent agenda, <u>a Motion was made by Trustee Farrell and</u> <u>seconded by Trustee Corbett to approve the consent agenda items A-E as presented.</u> Roll call: Vote: 5ayes: Trustees Mierisch, Zambetti, Farrell, Hacker and Corbett. 0-nays, 0-abstained. Motion carried.

## Items for Approval

A Motion to approve Resolution 03-2015, a Resolution providing for and requiring the submission of a proposition for issuing an amount not to exceed \$5,000,000.00 general obligation bonds to the voters of the Village of Gilberts at the general election to be held on April 7,2015

Administrator Keller reported that approval of this resolution would add a referendum questions to the April 7 ballot asking whether Gilberts voters would support public financing of a fiber-based network throughout the Village to expand the community's option for broadband service. Due to favorable market conditions, a \$5,000,000.00 GO bond financed over 20 years would correspond to an average annual property tax increase of \$150-\$170.

Revenue from service providers leasing the use of the fiber infrastructure would be used to pay down the GO bonds faster and fund future network maintenance costs.

Trustee Corbett noted that the public question states an amount not to exceed \$5,000,000.00 at a rate of 5% percent. However, the dollar amount and rate could be less than noted in the question. Administrator Keller replied yes.

Trustee Hacker suggested waiting a year to see how the Fiber project in the Conservancy works. He was not in favor of using public funds to construct a dark fiber network without knowing for certain that service providers would be interested in leasing the use of the fiber network. Trustee Mierisch expressed an interest in Trustee Hacker's suggestion.

Trustee Zambetti did not see any harm in placing the public question on the April 7<sup>th</sup> ballot. He believed the Village should allow the voters to make the decision if there is a need for fiber or if they happy with the current service provider choices.

Trustee Hacker expressed concern that at this time the Village has not been able to identify interested service providers. Administrator Keller replied that Staff is hoping in the next few weeks they will be able to announce the names of the interested service providers.

Trustee Mierisch noted that service provider options vary depending on which subdivision the resident resides in. She noted in her neighborhood AT&T U Verse is available.

Trustee Corbett noted that none of the service provider options available to Gilberts' residents have the capability to provide the internet speed that the dark fiber would. He commented on the fact that there is litigation against Comcast with respect to what constitutes broadband. The magic number appears to be 25 Mbps. However the dark fiber project service would be 100 xs faster.

Trustee Corbett agrees with Trustee Zambetti, he sees no harm in placing the referendum question on the April 7<sup>th</sup> ballot.

Trustee Hacker had no issue with placing the referendum question on the April ballot if the Village explained the risk. In Trustee Hacker's opinion the Village should not be risking taxpayer dollars and getting into the internet business. There are unknown issues at this point that could affect the outcome of this project.

For example, how much would it cost homeowners compared to the fees charged by existing internet and content providers, what is the number of users willing to sign-up for fiber internet services, who will provide a long term maintenance program, how would it be funded, and the Village needs to identify who the contract service providers are to ensure service availability. In closing, Trustee Hacker stated if this network is viable, it seems likely that private investors would be willing to take the risk to construct the proposed network. Trustee Hacker reiterated the fact that he believes the Village should wait a year to see how the Conservancy's fiber network proceeds.

Trustee Farrell agreed that the referendum should be placed on the April ballot. The Village does however need to educate the voters.

There being no further discussion on the motion, <u>a Motion was made by Trustee Corbett and seconded</u> <u>by Trustee Farrell to approve Resolution 03-2015</u>, a Resolution providing for and requiring the <u>submission of a proposition for issuing an amount not to exceed \$5,000,000.00 general obligation</u> <u>bonds to the voters of the Village of Gilberts at the general election to be held on April 7, 2015</u>. Roll call: Vote: 4-ayes: Trustees Zambetti, Farrell, Corbett, and Mierisch. 1-nay: Trustee Hacker, 0-abstained. Motion Carried.

# A Motion to approve Resolution 04-2015, a Resolution authorizing an agreement with Bernardi Securities Inc. for bond underwriting services

Administrator Keller reported that approval of this Resolution would authorize an engagement agreement with Bernardi Securities to provide underwriting services for the refunding of the SSA 9 Bonds. Currently low interest rates provide an opportunity for refinancing the SSA #9 bonds, resulting in lower tax bills for Timber Trails, Timber Glen, and Woodland Park homeowners. The cost of Bernardi's services would be absorbed by the proceeds from the refunding of the SSA #9 Bonds.

There being no further discussion on the motion, <u>a Motion was made by Trustee Farrell and seconded</u> by Trustee Hacker to approve Resolution 04-2015, a Resolution authorizing an agreement with <u>Bernardi Securities Inc. for bond underwriting services.</u> Roll call: Vote: 5-ayes: Trustees Hacker, Corbett, Mierisch, Zambetti, and Farrell. 0-nays, 0-abstained. Motion carried.

## A Motion to approve Resolution 05-2015, a Resolution authorizing application for Kane County Community Development Funds and execution of all necessary documents

Administrator Keller reported approval of this Resolution would authorize Staff to execute a grant application to Kane County's Community Development (which is funded by HUD) for funding the Old Town Stormwater and Road Improvement Projects.

As the project is budgeted at \$583,000 Staff will request \$200,000 (35% of the budget) from the Community Development program, which prioritizes affordable housing projects, emergency shelters and neighborhood-level infrastructure projects that go beyond regular maintenance.

Trustee Mierisch questioned if this would satisfy the Affordable Housing mandate requirements. Administrator Keller replied no; in order to receive HUD funds the subdivision within the Village applying for the grant funds must meet certain criteria. However, the requirements are based on the individual homeowners' circumstances.

Trustee Hacker asked if the Village was not awarded the grant would the Village still proceed with the improvements. Administrator Keller replied yes.

There being no further comments on the motion, <u>a Motion was made by Trustee Farrell and second by</u> <u>Trustee Corbett to approve Resolution 05-2015, a Resolution authorizing application for Kane county</u> <u>Community Development Funds and execution of necessary documents.</u> Roll call: Vote: 5-ayes: Trustees Corbett, Mierisch, Zambetti, Farrell, and Hacker. 0-nays, 0-abstained. Motion carried.

#### Staff Reports

Administrator Keller reported that the ice rink has been installed. Chief Building Inspector Swedberg is waiting for cooler temperatures to pour the final layer. Trustee Corbett suggested using a flag program to inform the skaters when the ice rink was favorable for skating.

#### **Board of Trustee Reports**

Trustee Mierisch questioned the status of the open items. The first open item in question was the status of the Master Engineering Agreement with Baxter & Woodman. Administrator Keller reported that he is still working with Engineer Larson on amending some of the language in the agreement.

Trustee Mierisch questioned if Administrator Keller had received any feedback from any of the Board Members with respect to Ancel & Glinks' service fee increase. Administrator Keller replied he had not received any feedback from any of the Board Member after the legal fee survey was provided. Trustee Mierisch noted that she was interested in examining the attorney fees after she reviewed the Attorney Fees Rate Survey provided by Staff.

Administrator Keller reported that the stop sign placement in Gilberts Town Center 2B had been resolved.

Administrator Keller reported that Staff will be scheduling a meeting with Ryland Homes to discuss the Village's concerns with unit 2B.

There was some discussion on the Intra Soccer incident.

Trustee Farrell inquired if Staff had drafted operational procedures for Town Center Park. Administrator Keller reported that Intern Wright was working on this project.

Trustee Hacker inquired on how many garage sales were residents allowed to have each year. Clerk Meadows replied each property owner is allowed three garage sales per year.

There was some discussion on the water bill issue.

President Pro Tem Zambetti on behalf of President Zirk asked if anyone objected to cancelling February 17<sup>th</sup> meeting and rescheduling the meeting to February 24<sup>th</sup>. The Board Members expressed no objections. Village Clerk Meadows will draft the proper notice and publish accordingly.

## Adjournment

There being no further business to discuss, a <u>Motion was made by Trustee Corbett and seconded by</u> <u>Trustee Farrell to adjourn from the public meeting at 8:53 p.m.</u> Roll call: Vote: 5-ayes by unanimous voice vote. 0-nays, 0-abstained. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Debra Meadows

**Village of Gilberts** 

87 Galligan Road

Gilberts, Illinois 60136

**Village Board Meeting** 

January 20, 2015

7:00 p.m.

**Sign-in-Sheet** 

Name

**Contact Information (Optional)** 

BUD DLL SUANIL om wards 

ronica Scaborn.

VENDOR	GRAND	GENERAL FUND 27,234.50	DEVELOPER DONATIONS	PERMIT PASS THRUS -	PERFORMANCE BONDS AND ESCROWS 5,241.71	WATER	PAYROLL
	TOTAL					FUND	
	125,320.59					19,637.52	73,206.86
ACE COFFEE BAR INC.	22.50	22.50					
AT&T U-VERSE	75.00	75.00					
B&F CONSTRUCTION CODE SVC, INC	962.50	962.50					
BATER & WOODMAN, INC.	8.847.03	4.279.32			4,567.71		
B&W CONTROL SYSTEMS INTEGRATIO	5,735.00	4,213.32			4,007.71	5,735.00	
CALL ONE	1,308.97	1,026.75				282.22	
CALL ONE CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.	360.00	250.00				110.00	
INTEGRATED PURCHSING OPTIONS	131.54	131.54				110.00	
COMMONWEALTH EDISON	2,188.82	2,188.82					
CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY. INC.	8,234.43	2,100.02				8,234,43	
COLLEGE OF DUPAGE	75.00	75.00				0,201.10	
EMBASSY CANTEEN	50.03	50.03					
WRIGHT EXPRESS FSC	4,071.46	3.901.16				170.30	
FOX VALLEY SECURITY SYSTEMS	372.00	372.00			1		
HEARTLAND SERVICES, INC.	35.00	35.00					
INTERLATE SYSTEMS, INC	35.00	35.00					
MCHENRY ANALYTICAL WATER	614.00					614.00	
MENARDS - CARPENTERSVILLE	409.12	394.40				14.72	
DUNDEE NAPA AUTO PARTS	504.37	504.37					
NEXUS OFFICE SYSTEMS, INC.	135.09	135.09					
PACES AUTO SERVICE	185.00	185.00					
PRAIRIE ANALYTICAL SYSTEMS	185.00					185.00	
RICHARD SPINKER	560.00	560.00					
SERGIOS AUTO BODY	407.34	407.34					
SUBURBAN LABORATORIES	506.00					506.00	
INTERSTATE PARTNERS	500.00				500.00		
American Dream Home Improvemen	116.00				116.00		
Domingo Rodriguez	58.00				58.00		
NORTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY	1,000.00	1,000.00					
DAVID TAUSSIG & ASSOCIATES	6,000.00	6,000.00					
TESSENDORF MECHANICAL	564.34	564.34					
THIRD MILLENNIUM ASSOCIATES	618.74			[		618.74	

#### DRAFT 2/3/15

VENDOR	GRAND	GENERAL	DEVELOPER	PERMIT	PERFORMANCE	WATER	PAYROLL
	TOTAL	FUND	DONATIONS	PASS	BONDS AND	FUND	(
				THRUS	ESCROWS		
TPI, INC.	89.95	89.95					
UNION NATIONAL BANK OF ELGIN	3,510.54	3,510.54					
UNITED LABORATORIES	884.00					884.00	
VERIZON WIRELESS	380.18	380.18					
COMMONWEALTH EDISON-WATER	2,283.11					2,283.11	
WHITE CAP CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY	98.67	98.67					

## AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE VILLAGE OF GILBERTS CODE CHAPTER 3-8 "AUCTIONS AND AUCTIONEERS" AND CHAPTER 2-4 "FEE SCHEDULE"

WHEREAS, the Village has determined it to be in the best interests of the Village and its residents to consider an amendment to the Gilberts Village Code.

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED** by the Village Board of the Village of Gilberts, Kane County, Illinois pursuant to its non-home rule powers, as follows:

<u>Section 1: Amendment.</u> Chapter 3-8 "Auctions and Auctioneers" is hereby amended (additions are identified as underlined and deletions are identified by strikethroughs):

**3-8-1 LICENSE REQUIRED:** It shall be unlawful for any person to hold, sponsor, or cause to be held an auction in the village without first obtaining an <u>annual</u> auction license as provided in this chapter.

## **3-8-2 APPLCIATION FOR LICESNE; FEE:**

- A. <u>An Annual</u> Application must be made to the village clerk by-either the sponsor of the auction or the auctioneer. at least ten (10) days prior to the auction. The license fee specified in section 2-4-23 of this code shall be paid at the time of application. Prior to conducting any auction the auctioneer at least ten (10) days prior to the auction shall inform the village clerk of the date and time of the scheduled auction and report any expectation of an increase in traffic or security issues.
- B. The village president or village clerk may request a background check by the village police department before issuing an auction license.

**3-8-3 DENIAL OF LICENSE:** The village may deny the auction license on grounds of failure to pay taxes, failure to cooperate with authorities, failure to apply within the required times, <u>failure to report the date and time of each auction</u>, previous suspension or revocation of licenses or other similar just cause.

**3-8-4 TERM AND POSTING OF LICENSE:** Each license is valid for forty eight (48) hours at one location. The license year commences on January 1 and ends on December 31 of each calendar year. Said license shall be posted in a conspicuous location throughout the duration of the auction calendar year.

**3-8-5 LOCATION RESTRICTIONS:** All activities associated with an auction must take place solely on private property or on duly rented public property. Any encroachment onto public ways shall be forbidden unless prior written permission is granted by the village.

**3-8-6 PENALTY:** Any person who violates any provision of this chapter shall be subject to the penalty provisions of title 1, chapter 4 of this code.

Section 2: Amendment. Section 2-4-23 of Title 2 "Finance and Taxation is hereby amended to read as follows (additions are identified as underlined and deletions are identified by strikethrough);

## 2-4-23 AUCTION LICENSE; Auctions conducted on a residential zoning lot (per event) \$50.00 Auctions conducted in all other areas of the village (per event) \$500.00

Annual renewal fee \$200.00

Section 3. Severability. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction finds this Ordinance or any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable as applied, such finding shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance and the application thereof to the greatest extent permitted by law.

<u>Section 4. Repeal and Saving Clause.</u> All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall affect any rights, actions, or causes of action which shall have accrued to the Village of Gilberts prior to the effective date of this Ordinance.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its approval in the manner provided by law.

**PASSED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES** of the Village of Gilberts, Illinois at a regular meeting thereof held on the \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2015.

	Ayes	<u>Nays</u>	Absent	<u>Abstain</u>
Trustee David LeClercq				
Trustee Dan Corbett				
Trustee Louis Hacker				
Trustee Nancy Farrell				
Trustee Patricia Mierisch				2
Trustee Guy Zambetti			<del></del>	
President Rick Zirk				1 <u> </u>
APPROVED this	_day of	, 2015		
(SEAL)				
		Village Pres	sident Rick Zirk	
ATTEST:				
Ű,	rk, Debra Meadov	WS		
Published:				



A CNI Global Ventures, Inc. Company

January 29, 2015

President Rich Zirk and Village of Gilberts Board of Trustees Village of Gilberts 87 Galligan Road Gilberts, IL 60136

Dear President Zirk and Members of the Village Board:

Pursuant to our request to waive the Auction License Fee, the intent of this letter is to address questions raised by Board Members at the January 20<sup>th</sup> Village Board Meeting. We are a professional state licensed auction firm in the business of auction and appraisal services since 2011. The types of auctions we conduct consist primarily of residential and commercial personal property. We do not have a "typical" auction or client. Because clients' needs and products are always changing, items to be sold vary in type, size, quantity and value. Therefore, the type of auction also changes with the needs of our clients.

We are looking to hold smaller-sized auction that can be accommodated safely within our 4,000 sq. ft. facility. A smaller auction would consist of 1 to 300 item lots, with an anticipated average of 150 to 200 lots. With the increasing number of bidders electing to bid using our online platform, we could expect an average of 15 to 30 live bidders in attendance based on an average sized auction.

As we have been in the Village for almost a year, waiving this fee would allow us to remain and continue growing our business in the Village of Gilberts. Thank you again for your professional consideration and courtesy.

Sincerely, David W. Gerber

President The X Factor Auctions & Appraisals

211 E. Higgins Road, Suite J, Gilberts, IL 60136 • Phone (847) 844-9922 • Fax (847) 844-9925 www.xfactorauctions.com



A CNI Global Ventures, Inc. Company

Municipality	Business License Required	Business License Fee	Auction License Required	Auction License Fee
Village of Algonquin	No	No	Yes	\$25/Auction
Village of Hampshire	No	No	No	No
Village of East Dundee	Yes	\$100/Year	No	No
Village of West Dundee	Yes	\$35/Year	No	No
City of Elgin	Yes	No*	No	No
Village of Streamwood	Yes	\$250/Year	Yes**	\$75/Day**
Village of Huntley	Yes	\$10/Year***	No	No

\* \$190 one-time occupancy fee

\*\* Not required if business is registered with Village

\*\*\* \$25 one-time fee